MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN AND FOR THE CITY OF MERCED

AND

MERCED ASSOCIATION OF CITY EMPLOYEES M.A.C.E

JANUARY 1, 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2019

CD DD & DD SE STORY OF SE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Preamble
Article I – Recognition
Article II – Non-discrimination
Article III – Dues Deduction - Maintenance of Membership4
Article IV – Representatives and Stewards
Article V – Hours and Working Conditions
Article VI – Vacation and Sick Leave ,,
Article VII – Health and Welfare17
Article VIII – Uniforms and Protective Clothing
Article IX – Seniority; Layoff; and Re-employment21
Article X –Wages23
Article XI – Driver's License/Plant Operator Cert/Physical Examination25
Article XII – Retirement
Article XIII – Grievance Procedure
Article XIV – Management Rights
Article XV – No Strike
Article XVI – Scope of Understanding
Article XVII – Separability
Article XVIII – Term of Agreement
Article XIX – Personnel Rules and Regulations
Article XX – Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)30
Article XXI – Smoking and Tobacco Product Use30
Wage Attachments

PREAMBLE

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU"), entered into between the City of Merced, hereinafter referred to as the "City," and Merced Association of City Employees (MACE), hereinafter referred to as the Association, has as its purpose: the establishment of wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment, and the rendering of more efficient and progressive service to the public.

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

SECTION 1.01. RECOGNITION. City acknowledges the Association as the recognized employee organization representing all full-time and part-time regular employees in classified positions within the non-supervisory maintenance and service unit. For purposes of clarity, the classifications represented in this agreement are as follows:

Airport Maintenance Worker Airport Operations Technician Apprentice Electrician Building Maintenance Worker I/II Collections System Worker I/II/III Container Maintenance Worker Custodian I/II Environmental Control Officer I/II **Equipment Service Worker** Fleet Maintenance Lead Worker Lead - Public Works Water Lead Tree Trimmer Lead Worker Utilities Lead Worker Refuse Maintenance Electrician Maintenance Worker I/II/III Mechanic I/II/III Park Worker I/II/III Park Worker-Pesticides I/II Public Utilities Inspector

Pump Operator

Refuse Equipment Operator Trainee Refuse Equipment Operator Street Sweeper Operator Trainee Street Sweeper Operator Traffic Signal/Lighting Technician Tree Trimmer Instrumentation and Electrical Electrician Wastewater Treatment Plant Mechanic I/II Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Trainee Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator I/II/II Water Conservation Specialist Water Meter/Backflow Technician Water System Irrigation Maintenance Worker Water Systems Technician I/II/III Water Treatment Plant Operator I/II/III Welder I/II

SECTION 1.02. PART-TIME REGULAR EMPLOYEE DEFINITION. As used in this Memorandum of Understanding, "part-time regular employee" means an employee working in a position at least 25 hours but less than 40 hours per week on a regularly scheduled basis.

Zookeeper

SO LIMB AG

ARTICLE II NON-DISCRIMINATION

SECTION 2.01. NON-DISCRIMINATION. In accordance with Federal and State law, the City prohibits discrimination and harassment against race, religion, color, age (40 and over), sex (including gender, gender identity, gender expression), national origin, ancestry, physical or mental disability, medical condition, genetic characteristics or information, marital status, sexual orientation (including homosexuality, bisexuality, or heterosexuality), military and veteran status, or any other basis protected by law.

SECTION 2.02. ASSOCIATION AFFILIATION. The City and the Association recognize the right of employees to form, join, and participate in lawful activities of employee organization and the equal right of employees to refuse to join and participate in employee organizations.

ARTICLE III DUES DEDUCTION - MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP

SECTION 3.01. DUES DEDUCTION.

When a member voluntarily signs a release furnished by the City authorizing the City to deduct Association dues or fees from the employee's regular biweekly paycheck, the City will make said deduction provided the employee is on regular pay status and the employee's paycheck is sufficient to cover the amount of the dues. The employee's earnings must be sufficient to cover the amount of dues or fees authorized after other legal and required deductions are first made. When an employee is in non-pay status for an entire pay period, no withholding will be made to cover that pay period. If an employee is in non-pay status during only a part of the pay period and his or her salary is not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no deduction shall be made. For payroll purposes, all other legal and required deductions (e.g., health care and insurance deductions, etc.) shall have priority over Union dues or fees. The City agrees to make its best effort to notify the Association of all new hires doing bargaining unit work within 30 days of hire.

SECTION 3.02. CERTIFICATION OF DUES. Each year during the month of December, the Association will certify to the Finance Officer the amount of the Association monthly dues. If the Association changes the amount of dues, each such change must be certified to the City at least four (4) weeks prior to the change becoming effective.

SECTION 3.03. LIABILITY. If during the term of this agreement any claims, charges, or lawsuits are brought against the City by any party over the matter of Association dues or Association dues deduction from members' paychecks, the Association agrees to indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless City and to pay any and all costs of such claims, charges, lawsuits, damages or settlements, including reasonable attorney's fees to be determined by a court of competent

jurisdiction. In addition, the Association shall refund to the City any amount paid to it in error upon presentation of support evidence.

SECTION 3.04. MAINTENANCE OF MEMBERSHIP.

- A. Association members on payroll deduction for the payment of Association dues as of 5:00 p.m. on the day following ratification by the membership of this Memorandum of Understanding must remain on payroll deduction for the life of this Memorandum of Understanding or so long as they remain members of the representative unit.
- B. Association members who establish dues payroll deduction during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding must remain on payroll deduction for the life of this Memorandum of Understanding or so long as they remain members of the representation unit.
- C. Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsections A and B of this section, Association members on dues payroll deduction may declare their intention to terminate such payroll deduction following expiration of this Memorandum of Understanding. Termination of such payroll deduction shall be in writing addressed to the City's Municipal Employee Relations Officer with a copy to the Association, and shall be submitted during the thirty- (30) day period between November 1 and November 30 of each year.
- D. Association agrees to hold City harmless and indemnify the City from any judgments and costs of defending lawsuits for implementing this provision of the Memorandum of Understanding.
- E. Association further agrees to notify all current and new members of the Association of this section in the Memorandum of Understanding.

SECTION 3.05. AGENCY SHOP.

- A. For the duration of this Memorandum of Understanding, all employees in the unit shall either join the Association or pay to the Association a service fee in an amount not to exceed the periodic dues and general assessments of the Association. Such contribution shall be made through voluntary payroll deduction.
- B. Any new member of the bargaining unit shall have thirty-one (31) days from the date of employment to make application for membership in the Association or to become an agency fee payer.
- C. Any employee who pays the service fee shall have the right to demand and receive from the Association, under procedures established by the Association, a return of any part of the service fee which represents expenditures in aid of partisan political or ideological nature only incidentally

- related to the terms and conditions of employment, or applied to benefits for only Association members.
- D. The Association, and not the City, shall be responsible for requiring employees to fulfill their obligations under Paragraphs A and B above.
- E. Any bargaining unit member whose claim for a religious exemption has been found bona fide, and whose claim has been granted, and shall as an alternative to payment of dues or agency fee to the Association, pay an equivalent amount to:

United Way, Red Cross, or Kidney Foundation

ARTICLE IV REPRESENTATIVES AND STEWARDS

SECTION 4.01. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES. For purposes of administering the terms and provisions of various ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations adopted with this Memorandum of Understanding, the City's principle authorized agent shall be the Director of Support Services or his/her duly authorized agent, except where a particular management representative is otherwise designated; the Associations' principal authorized representatives the MACE President and representative designated in writing by MACE president.

SECTION 4.02. STEWARDS. Association agrees to notify City of the names of stewards. Stewards shall be employees of the City. The number of stewards shall be limited to a total of seven. A written list of the names of the stewards will be presented to the Director of Support Services within ten (10) days following the signing of this Memorandum of Understanding. Association agrees to notify City promptly of any change in stewards. No person will be recognized by the City as a steward until written notification from the Association is received by the Director of Support Services.

SECTION 4.03. TIME OFF FOR REPRESENTATIVES. When mutually agreed to by City and Association, employees elected to Association office shall be granted time off without loss of pay to attend labor relations seminars that are of benefit to City and Association and to meet and confer with representatives of City on matters within the scope of representation.

4.04 REPRESENTATION RELEASE TIME. City and Association agree that, as long as there is no disruption of work, any one of the officers of Association may be allowed reasonable release time with supervisor approval, not to exceed two (2) hours per week, away from his/her work duties, without loss of pay, to assist any unit employee or employees in investigation of facts and in presentation of a grievance.

4.05 BULLETIN BOARDS. Association Executive Board Members and Association stewards will be allowed to us the approved Bulletin Boards for communication and

dissemination of information to unit members. All communications must be in accordance with public record laws.

The designated locations for Bulletin Boards permitted for Association information shall be the worksites of the represented employees. Every effort will be made to locate the bulletin boards in general break areas of the represented group. The City shall determine actual placement of the boards in respective break rooms. Association shall purchase said Bulletin Boards with prior design approval by the City. Such enclosure shall be a locking cabinet with limited key access. Material posted to Bulletin Boards shall not be obscene, misleading, contain threatening or harassing statements, contain any deliberate misstatements, compromise the integrity of the City and its business operations in any way, or violate Federal, State, or Municipal laws, or the Personnel Rules and Regulations and Administrative Policies and Procedures.

ARTICLE V HOURS AND WORKING CONDITIONS

SECTION 5.01. WORKDAY, WORKWEEK, WORK PERIOD.

- A. <u>Workday</u> The normal workday shall consist of eight (8) hours, exclusive of any meal period. This 8-hour workday will also be known as a shift.
 - Certain departments or divisions, with approval of the department head and authorization of the City Manager, may operate at other times when needed to serve the public or to continue the efficient operations of City service.
 - 2. Employees for whom necessity requires a different schedule than that generally applied shall work a basic workweek according to the schedule prepared by the department head and approved by the City Manager and posted on the department bulletin board.
- B. Workweek The normal workweek shall consist of five (5) days of eight (8) hours each for a total of forty (40) hours. On occasion, when efficiency of operation and public service will not be affected, and at the sole discretion of the City, the department head, with authorization of the City Manager, may experiment with a workweek of four (4) days of ten (10) hours each for a total of forty (40) hours. The workweek schedule shall be established by the City in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.
 - C. <u>Work Period</u> The normal work period shall be eighty (80) hours during each fourteen (14) calendar days.

SECTION 5.02. MEAL PERIOD.

- A. Except as provided in Subsection B of this section, each employee shall be entitled to an unpaid thirty (30) minute meal period during each shift. The period will be scheduled by the supervisor as close to the middle of the shift as the work allows. The unpaid 30-minute meal period may be used by the employee as the employee sees fit; however, City vehicles shall not be left unattended if parked in a public right-of-way (portion of the road traveled by the public). The vehicle must be parked in an area that is safe off the public right-of-way and properly secured. Employees shall not leave the worksite before the beginning of the meal period and must be back to work at the end of the 30-minute meal period. In the event the vehicle cannot be left unattended, then staggered lunch hours will be permitted.
- B. Notwithstanding the provisions of Subsection A of this section, employees in the class of Refuse Equipment Operator/Trainee shall be entitled to unpaid 45-minute meal period during each shift. During such 45-minute meal period, the employees in the Refuse Division may drive the city vehicles to the nearest approved site for wash up and eating. Several sites will be approved by the supervisor for use by the employees. Employees shall not leave the worksite before the beginning of the meal period and must be back to work at the end of the 45-minute meal period.

SECTION 5.03. REST PERIODS. All employees shall be granted one (1) rest period not to exceed fifteen (15) minutes during each half shift of four (4) hours. The department head may specify the location or locations where rest periods may be taken. Rest periods shall be considered time worked for pay purposes and employees may be required to perform duties if necessary during emergency conditions.

SECTION 5.04. CLEAN-UP TIME. All employees whose work causes their person or clothing to become soiled shall be provided with reasonable time for wash up purposes at shift end.

SECTION 5.05. EMERGENCY CONDITIONS. Emergency conditions are conditions involving real or potential loss of service or property or personal danger as determined by the management of the City.

SECTION 5.06. SCHEDULING. Within these basic categories of workday, workweek, work period, meal period, rest period, clean-up time and emergency conditions, the department head, with the approval of the City Manager, shall have the discretion to modify work schedules to meet the needs of the City. When changes in schedules are anticipated, a minimum of fourteen (14) days notification will be given to employees of new schedule; or when such changes are deemed immediately necessitated by emergency conditions, the department head shall give employees as much advance notice as is reasonably possible.

SECTION 5.07. OVERTIME.

- A. Overtime is defined paid and calculated pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) as actual hours worked beyond the established forty (40) hours in a seven (7) day workweek.
- B. For the purpose of computing the number of hours worked, time during which an employee is excused from work because of holiday, vacation, sick leave of authorized compensatory time-off (CTO), shall be considered as time worked by the employee.
- C. Except as otherwise provided in this MOU, compensation for assigned and authorized overtime work in excess of 40 hours in a work week, as outlined above, shall be at a rate equivalent to one and one-half times the regular hourly rate pursuant to Fair Labor Standards Act regulations.

SECTION 5.08. CALL-BACK. Employees called back to work by the department head or his/her representative during this period shall be paid a minimum of two (2) hours' pay at the rate of time and one-half.

SECTION 5.09. STANDBY/CALL BACK.

- A. <u>Standby</u>. Employees who are required to be available on a standby basis for possible call-back work during their off shift hours receive a standby allowance or may accrue standby as CTO at straight time as follows:
 - 1. Employees on overnight standby (i.e., a 16-consecutive hour period commencing with the end of the regularly scheduled workshift) shall receive a standby allowance of two (2) hours pay at the employee's straight time hourly rate for each night of standby required.
 - 2. Employees on standby on regularly scheduled days off (i.e., a 24-consecutive hour period commencing at 8:00 a.m.) shall receive a standby allowance of three (3) hours pay at the employee's straight time hourly rate for each of said days of standby required.
 - 3. Employees on standby on holidays shall receive a standby allowance of four (4) hours pay at the employee's straight time hourly rate for each of said eligible holidays of standby required.

When the City, in its sole discretion, determines that it is reasonably feasible and will not interfere with City operations, the City will make efforts to distribute standby time on an equitable basis.

B. <u>Standby/Call-Back</u>. An employee on standby who is called out to work shall receive, in addition to the standby allowance provided above, payment in accordance with Section 5.07.

SECTION 5.10. SPLIT SHIFT. As used in this section, split shift means a shift where an employee has at least three (3) hours, including lunch, off work between shifts on the same day.

SECTION 5.11. COMPENSATORY TIME OFF (CTO).

- CTO Rate. Members of the unit who work over forty (40) hours in a seven (7) Α. day work week shall normally be paid in cash for all overtime hours worked at the rate of one and one-half times the regular hourly rate. As an exception to such payment, at the request of the employee, an employee may be given compensatory time off (CTO) for regular overtime, call-back time, and standby time. The time at which allowed compensatory time off (CTO) may be taken will be determined by the department head based on the needs of the City service but after considering the preference of the employee.
- B. CTO Maximum Accrual. The maximum accrual of CTO hours is eighty (80) hours. Above the maximum accrual, all regular overtime, call-back time and standby time worked shall be paid in cash at the rate at which it was accrued. The City shall be in compliance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.
- C. CTO Payment. All employees will have the option to cash out a maximum of forty (40) hours of CTO that has been accumulated, payable once per quarter. Payment shall be made by separate check, unless and until adverse changes in State and Federal regulations.

SECTION 5.12. AUTHORIZATION. The amount of overtime work, call-back work, standby shall be determined through general policy of the City Manager except as specifically abridged in this Memorandum of Understanding.

No employee shall perform overtime work, call-back work, or standby unless such work is authorized and directed by the department head or his/her representative nor shall such employee be paid for such overtime, call-back, or standby unless the same shall be approved by the department head on the payroll sheet submitted at the end of the pay period in which the work was performed.

SECTION 5.13. HOLIDAYS.

Α. Holidays. During the term of this agreement, the following holidays are recognized as City holidays for pay purposes:

New Year's Day The 1st day of January Martin Luther King, Jr. Birthday The 3rd Monday of January Presidents' Day The 3rd Monday of February Memorial Day The last Monday in May Independence Day The 4th day of July Labor Day The first Monday in September Veteran's Day The 11th day of November

Page 10 of 39

Thanksgiving Day	The 4 th Thursday in November
Day After Thanksgiving Day	The day after the 4th Thursday in
	November
Christmas Day	The 25 th day of December

Either Christmas Eve or New Year's Eve – Employee is guaranteed to be allowed to take within the calendar year. Payment authorized for working only when deemed to be an emergency. If staffing and scheduling makes it such that employee can get neither day off, an alternate day can be selected with approval of the City Manager if request is made no later than December 1.

One Floating Holiday – Floating holiday is available to be taken up to December 31 of each calendar year. Floating holiday will be paid at time of separation if not previously taken for that calendar year. To be taken when requested by the employee and with the approval of the department head. If supervisor/manager cannot schedule holiday after third request, employee shall be paid for such holiday on next pay period. Unit member hired after the second Monday in October would not be eligible for floating holiday in that calendar year.

When any day recognized as a holiday by the City falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered the holiday. When any day recognized as a holiday by the City falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be considered the holiday.

Subject to regulation and control of the City Manager, the department head may require any employee to work on any or all of said holidays.

- B. Holiday Pay. Full-time employees shall receive eight (8) hours' pay at their regular hourly rate for each recognized City holiday. Part-time regular employees shall receive holiday pay at their regular hourly rate on a pro rata basis.
- C. <u>Holidays Leave Without Pay Status</u>. If a member is in a leave without pay (LWOP) status, holiday pay is not afforded that member.
- D. Holiday Pay Day Worked. Employees of the unit eligible for holiday benefits who are required to work on a day designated as a holiday shall be paid or may accrue CTO at the straight time rate for each hour worked during the first eight (8) hours of work on such holiday and, in addition, shall receive pay equal to and in lieu of time off at straight time for said holiday. The compensation provided for in this subsection shall be inclusive of any overtime compensation or other benefits to which such employees may be entitled under the provisions of any ordinance or resolution of the City or other applicable law, and not in addition thereto.

- E. <u>Holiday Pay Day Off.</u> When a day designated as a holiday falls on a normally assigned day off of an employee of the unit who is eligible for holiday benefits, said employee shall have the option to receive pay equal to and in lieu of time off at straight time, not to exceed eight (8) hours, for said holiday; or to take time off at straight time not to exceed eight (8) hours for said holiday at a future date within the following sixty (60) day period, with proper authorization by supervisory/management personnel.
- F. <u>Absences Before and After Holidays.</u> Any employee who is absent from work on the day before and/or the day after a holiday, as set forth in Subsection A above, shall forfeit the holiday pay unless the absence is taken as approved leave with prior notice. An absence taken as sick leave will be approved only by verification by the supervisor who may require a medical certificate verifying inability of the employee to work.
- G. <u>Holidays/Refuse Division</u>. The responsibilities of the refuse division necessitate the regular pick up of solid waste for the health and safety of the citizens of Merced. Notwithstanding this need, employees in the Refuse Division will not be required to work on date on which Independence, Thanksgiving, Christmas, or New Year's Day are celebrated, with the exception of those employees who are required to work as directed by the department head.

These four holidays will be considered as time worked for the purpose of computing wages. Those employees actually required to work Independence, Thanksgiving, Christmas, or New Year's will receive time and one-half pay for the hours worked.

H. <u>Holidays/Wastewater Treatment Plant Division</u>. The responsibilities of the wastewater treatment plant division necessitate a seven-day per week schedule for the health and safety of the citizens of Merced. Notwithstanding this need, employees in the Wastewater Treatment Plant Division will not be required to work on the date on which Independence, Thanksgiving, Christmas, or New Year's Day are celebrated, with the exception of two operators for each shift.

These four holidays will be considered as time worked for the purpose of computing wages. Those employees actually required to work Independence, Thanksgiving, Christmas, or New Year's will receive time and one-half pay for the hours worked.

Wastewater Treatment Plant personnel who are on a 4/10 work schedule shall be paid for holidays worked during the pay period that said holiday occurs.

SECTION 5.14. COMBINATION OF BREAK PERIOD AND LUNCH HOUR DURING AN EMERGENCY EVENT. Unit members shall be allowed to combine

break period with meal period during an emergency event provided that immediate supervisor is notified and grants approval. Unit Member/Employee shall return to normal duties before the end of the shift.

ARTICLE VI VACATION AND SICK LEAVE

SECTION 6.01. CONTINUOUS SERVICE. For the purpose of this section, continuous service means service without any authorized break or interruption during the period for which the employee has been employed by the City. A break or interruption in continuous service shall be construed as a deliberate severance of employment initiated by either the City or the employee for periods of more than fifteen (15) calendar days.

SECTION 6.02. VACATION.

- A. <u>Vacation Accrual</u>. All eligible employees earn vacation benefits in accordance with their length of continuous service as follows:
 - 1. Full-time employees with less than 5 years of continuous service earn vacation benefits at the rate of 3.696 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 192.00 hours.
 - 2. After the completion of 5 years of continuous service, full-time employees earn vacation benefits at the rate of 4.616 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 240.00 hours.
 - 3. After the completion of 9 years of continuous service, full-time employees earn vacation benefits at the rate of 6.160 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 320.00 hours.
 - 4. After the completion of 15 years of continuous service, full-time employees earn vacation benefits at the rate of 6.928 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 360 hours. The proposal shall not be retroactive and is effective on a go forward basis following ratification by membership and approval of MOU by the City Council, but no sooner than payperiod 14 in 2018
 - 5. After the completion of 20 years of continuous service, full-time employees earn vacation benefits at the rate of 7.696 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 400.00 hours.

- 6. After the completion of 25 years of continuous service, full-time regular employees earn vacation benefits at the rate of 9.232 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees who earn vacation at this rate may accumulate vacation to a maximum of 480 hours.
- B. <u>Maximum Vacation Accrual</u>. When the maximum number of vacation hours is accumulated by an employee, vacation hours shall cease to accrue to that employee and hours that would otherwise accrue over the maximum are lost to the employee and will not be reimbursed.
- C. Vacation Cash Out. All employees of the unit will have the option to cash out up to a maximum of twenty (20) hours of accrued vacation time. Employees who elect to cash out vacation shall have a minimum balance of 100 accrued vacation hours prior to the cash out pay period and shall have completed their initial probationary period with the City of Merced. Vacation payment will take place once per year in the first pay period in December. The proposal shall not be retroactive and is effective on a go forward basis following ratification by membership and approval of MOU by the City Council, but no sooner than first full pay period after City Council approval.
- D. <u>Payment Upon Separation</u>. Employees who leave City employment shall be compensated for vacation accrued but not taken up to the date of separation.
- E. <u>Holiday During Vacation</u>. When a holiday occurs during a scheduled vacation period, and such holiday would have excused the employee from work, and no other compensation is made for such holiday, then the employee shall be considered as taking the holiday and shall not be charged a day of vacation.
- F. <u>Vacation Use</u>. Vacation used by an employee shall be charged against the vacation accrued on an hour-for-hour basis.
- G. <u>Vacation Schedule/Sanitation Division</u>. For Refuse Equipment Operators and Refuse Equipment Operator Trainees, vacations shall be scheduled based on total time as a regular employee in the Refuse Division.

SECTION 6.03. SICK LEAVE.

A. <u>Sick Leave Accrual</u>. All eligible employees earn sick leave benefits in accordance with their length of continuous service.

Full-time regular employees earn sick leave benefits from the first date of employment at the rate of 3.696 hours each biweekly pay period of continuous service. Employees may accumulate sick leave benefits to a maximum of 1056.00 accured sick leave hours.

Part-time employees earn sick leave benefits at a pro rata rate.

- B. <u>Maximum Sick Leave Accrual</u>. When the maximum number of sick leave hours is accumulated by an employee, sick leave hours shall cease to accrue to that employee until they fall below the accrual cap.
- C. <u>Sick Leave for Probationers</u>. Any unit member appointed to a position in the classified service serves a probationary period of twelve (12) months. Probationary employees may use sick leave accrued to them under the same rules and regulations as regular employees, except that any sick leave used in excess of 3 days or 24 hours, whichever is greater shall be repaid to the City if the employee does not pass probation. Repayment shall be accomplished by the City's withholding from the employee's final paycheck an amount equal to the number of sick leave hours used times the employee's regular hourly rate of pay during which sick was used. This section does not apply to unit employees who have successfully completed their initial 12-month probationary period.
- D. Payment of Excess Accrued Sick Leave. In Pay Period #1 of each year, employees who have unused sick leave hours in excess of 960 as of the last pay period in the preceding December shall be paid at their straight time rate for 50 percent of said hours in excess of 960 but the remaining 50 percent of hours in excess of 960 will be forfeited.
- E. <u>Sick Leave Upon Resignation or Dismissal</u>. To the extent permitted by law, an employee who resigns or is dismissed forfeits all further eligibility to any accrued but unused sick leave.
- F. <u>Sick Leave Upon Retirement</u>. An employee of the unit who retires from the City after ten (10) or more years of continuous service will be paid at the straight time hourly rate for 50 percent of the hours of accrued but unused sick leave. The remaining 50 percent of the hours of accrued but unused sick leave will be forfeited.
- G. <u>Bereavement Leave</u>. In the event of a death in the immediate family, an employee, upon request, shall be granted up to three (3) days and no more than twenty-four (24) hours bereavement leave with pay without charge to accumulated sick leave or vacation.

The City Manager may grant up to an additional three (3) days and no more than twenty-four (24) hours bereavement leave upon written request of the employee where extensive travel is required to attend the funeral, or where other extenuating circumstances require the attendance of the employee for additional time. Such additional bereavement leave shall be charged against the employee's accumulated sick leave.

For purposes of this subsection, the immediate family shall be considered as the employee's spouse, domestic partner, mother, father, children, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandparents, or grandchildren.

- H. <u>Sick Leave for Immediate Family</u>. An employee with accumulated sick leave may use sick leave to attend to an illness of a child, domestic partner's child who is ill, parent, spouse, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, or domestic partner of the employee, as defined by statute. Leave for this purpose may not be taken until it has actually accrued. Granting of sick leave shall be at the discretion of the department head
- Ι. Sick Leave Verification. Sick leave is intended to be used only when actually required to recover from illness or injury, or as time off for medical and dental appointments to the extent that such appointments cannot be scheduled outside of the workday. Employees may request accrued vacation time off to cover other personal absences not covered by this sick leave policy. The City will not tolerate abuse or misuse of sick leave privileges. In order to assure compliance by employees of the sick leave privilege and to refrain from creating undue requirements on all employees for the actions of a few, the City will consider and require verification of potential sick leave abuse on a case-by-case basis in accordance with the law. In instances where abuse is suspected, or sick leave use begins to lead toward a pattern of abuse, the department head may require written verification by means of a physician's statement or personal affidavit (the choice of which shall be made by the department head, depending on the nature of the circumstances) in order for the employee to receive paid sick leave, otherwise such absence from work shall be charged to leave without pay. Abuse of sick leave shall be defined as any of the following:
 - Where an employee uses more than 2 days of sick leave in any calendar quarter in connection with the day before or after a holiday, or first or last day of the workweek.
 - 2. Where an employee uses sick leave more than six (6) incidents in the previous twelve- (12) month period.
 - 3. Where an employee uses any single occurrence of sick leave and it is reasonably believed that the employee used sick leave improperly. Where it is reasonably determined that the sick leave privilege has been abused, those employees responsible for such abuse shall be subject to disciplinary actions.
- J. Holiday During Sick Leave. When a holiday occurs during sick leave, and such holiday would have excused the employee from work, and no other compensation is made for such holiday, then the employee shall be considered as taking the holiday and shall not be charged a day of sick leave.

- K. <u>Sick Leave Use</u>. Sick leave used by an employee shall be charged against the sick leave accrued on an hour-for-hour basis.
- L. <u>Family Medical Leave Act.</u> In accordance with administrative policies and procedures, employees in the unit will be entitled to family and medical leave required by federal and state law.

ARTICLE VII HEALTH AND WELFARE

SECTION 7.01. BENEFITS PROVIDED AND REQUIRED. City shall provide a "cafeteria" plan. Each employee shall be required to participate in the following five plans to a level that provides for the employee:

- Hospital/medical care plan,
- Dental care plan,
- Vision care plan,
- · Disability insurance plan,
- Life insurance plan.

Employees may request a waiver for medical, dental, or vision coverage from the Support Services Department. Such waiver may be granted only if the employee shows proof of other coverage through the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner as defined in City of Merced Administrative Policy P-27 effective December 1, 2006. Should an employee who has obtained a waiver to this provision lose such alternative coverage, the employee shall provide proof to the Support Services Department with five (5) business days and enroll in a City-provided insurance program. If waiver of coverage is granted the allowance as outlined in Section 7.03 will be adjusted accordingly.

Participation for the employee's dependents, and participation in other coverages offered, is optional.

SECTION 7.02. PLAN SELECTION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COMMITTEE.

The City shall provide a selection of employee health and welfare benefit coverages for eligible employees and retirees, including but not limited to at least two options each for hospital/medical care plan, dental care plan, vision care plan, life insurance plan, and disability insurance plan. The plans shall be selected solely by the City following review of proposals by the Employee Benefits Committee. For the purpose of this section, it is understood that the role of the Employee Benefits Committee is advisory to the City Council. The Committee shall be comprised of representatives of each of the City's bargaining units and management.

section 7.03. Schedule of Allowances Per Pay Period. The City shall contribute an amount per bi weekly pay period (based on twenty-six pay periods annually) as the Cafeteria Allowance Per Pay Period.

Effective December 18, 2017 (PP1) the pay period allowances are as follows:

Medical

Employee Only	\$230.84
Employee plus one	\$472.71
Employee plus two or more	\$694.89

Dental, Vision, Disability, and Life

Employee only	\$33.28
Employee plus one	\$46.75
Employee plus two or more	\$66.54

Future health and welfare plan costs over the current cost (if any) will be shared by both the City and the employee. Any increase in the sum of core premiums necessary to purchase the above listed coverages will be shared (55/45) between the City and the employee with the City paying 55% of the increase and the employee paying 45% of the increase. The City's portion shall reflect an increase in the Cafeteria Per Pay Period.

"Core" is defined as the basic offerings in the Cafeteria Plan listed in 7.01.

The employee shall be responsible for the balance of the premiums, if any, beyond the Cafeteria Allowance Per Pay Period. This applies for all insurance coverages selected, whether those coverages are part of the five basic offerings in the cafeteria, or other selections.

Employee contributions may be made on a pretax basis if the employee elects to participate in a Section 125 plan.

In order to avoid issues of adverse selection and recognizing the mutual interest of the City and the Association in avoiding escalation of insurance premium expenses, no employee shall receive cash back for having waived required coverage under section 7.01, except that a unit member who is married and whose spouse or registered domestic partner is also a current City of Merced employee, accepted for waiver of medical coverage, shall receive cash back equal to twenty-five percent (25%) of the core medical premium for a single individual.

SECTION 7.04. MEDICAL/HEALTH, DENTAL AND VISION CARE COVERAGE AFTER RETIREMENT.

A. In accordance with Administrative Policy and Procedure No. P-17, the City shall provide a hospital/mecical care plan for eligible retirees. The hospital/medical care plan shall be selected solely by the City and shall provide essentially the same benefits to retirees as are provided to full-time employees. An employee shall be considered a retiree of the City if the employee retires in the California Public Employees' Retirement System and his/her last active place of full-time employment within the system was with

the City. All retirees are eligible except as provided in (F) below and shall receive hospital/medical care coverage under the following conditions.

- The retiree is age 50 or over with at least ten (10) years of service with the City; or
- 2. Retiree is retired because of a service-connected disability; or
- 3. Retiree is retired because of a non-service connected disability with at least ten (10) years of service.

Spouse or registered domestic partner of eligible retiree may remain on the plan until the retiree is deceased. The spouse or registered domestic partner and retiree shall be responsible for payment of the premium for coverage of spouse or registered domestic partner.

B. <u>City Contribution</u>. For those eligible retirees in retirement status prior to December 31, 2004, the City agrees to contribute the amount necessary to provide a comparable hospital/medical plan for each eligible retiree.

For those active unit members who retire after December 31, 2004, the City agrees to contribute the monthly premium for each eligible retiree capped at the following amounts: \$310.03 monthly for Retirees over 65, and \$522.01 monthly for Retirees under 65. The Retiree shall pay any amount over the capped premium.

- C. Supplemental Retirement Medical Allowance. An employee retiring on or after January 1, 1999, and eligible for retirement medical benefits as provided in this Section, said retired employee and spouse or registered domestic partner and/or other dependents shall continue to be covered under the City's medical plan until both persons reach age 65. The City shall pay the premium for the retired employee, and the dependent(s) premium, shall be the responsibility of the retired employee. At the age of 65, the City's medical plan shall be secondary to Medicare medical coverage or any other benefit coverage available to the retired employee and eligible spouse or registered domestic partner.
- D. An eligible employee who retires after August 1, 1998, and his/her spouse or registered domestic partner and/or dependents, shall be eligible to continue coverage under the City's dental and vision plans. The premiums shall be the responsibility of the retired employee. At the age of 65, or upon the dropping of coverage by the employee, or the death of the eligible employee, the City's dental and vision plans will no longer be available to the retired employee and his/her eligible spouse or registered domestic partner and/or dependents.

E. New unit employees hired after December 31, 2004 will not be entitled to receive the City's health/medical plan coverage after retirement.

- F. Any Employee deemed to be terminated by the City as the result of the following disciplinary actions shall not be eligible for the City of Merced health/medical/dental/vision coverage after retirement.
 - 1. Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor involving moral turpitude. A plea or a verdict of guilty, or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere, to a charge of a felony or any offense involving moral turpitude is deemed to be a conviction.
 - 2. Fraud or the submission of false information related to the employment application, payroll, or any work related record or report in an amount equal to Grand Larceny under the California Penal Code.
 - 3. Discrimination, including harassment, against other employees or members of the public on the basis of race, color, national origin, religious creed, ancestry, sex, marital status, age or physical handicap.
 - 4. Intoxication, intemperance, or incapacity on duty due or addiction to the use of controlled substances or alcohol.

ARTICLE VIII UNIFORMS AND PROTECTIVE CLOTHING

SECTION 8.01. UNIFORMS. City agrees to provide uniforms for employees who are required as a condition of employment to wear uniforms.

SECTION 8.02. PROTECTIVE CLOTHING.

- A. City agrees to furnish protective clothing to employees when they must wear such clothing due to chemicals or equipment used in their work.
- B. City agrees to provide each employee in the unit a boot allowance of \$200.00 per fiscal year. Employee may purchase approved boots from a vendor of their choice and submit a request for reimbursement or obtain boots from a City approved vendor at a scheduled onsite visit. On-site vendor shall visit no less than twice per year as directed by the Department Head. Upon reimbursement by City after purchase, or receipt of boots from onsite vendor, the employee shall be required to wear such boots when performing his/her duties with the City.
- C. City agrees to furnish safety prescription eyewear for unit members who are required to wear prescription glasses and safety goggles during the performance of their normal assigned tasks. Safety eyewear under this Section shall require prior approval by the department head or designee.

SECTION 8.03. SAFETY JACKETS. City agrees to provide safety jackets for all unit employees, which clothing is required by the nature of their work. City agrees to replace safety jackets on as needed basis based on safety requirements as determined by Safety Officer.

SECTION 8.04. FLEET WORKER BASIC HAND TOOLS. Employees in the unit hired as a mechanic or worker in the fleet division or as directed by the department head will be required to provide their own basic hand tools (as listed in exhibit B). Upon hire into the Fleet division, the employee will create a tool inventory to submit to the supervisor for verification and retention. Annually this tool inventory will be reviewed and verified by the supervisor and employee. It is the employee's responsibility to report any additional, new or replaced tools to the supervisor.

In consideration for providing tools under this section and to reimburse employees for replacement and usage of tools, the City shall provide an annual allowance of \$300, payable the pay period that incorporates July 1. This amount is payable retrospectively, not prospectively, and will be pro-rated based on the number of pay periods employee worked in a classification required to provide their own basic hand tools. If an employee has worked less than a full year in an eligible classification, the allowance will be pro-rated to account for any period of time during which the employee is not employed in the classification or is on a leave of absence without pay. Alternatively, if the employee's employment with the City ends prior to July 1, he or she shall not be eligible to receive a pro-rated allowance with his or her final paycheck.

ARTICLE IX SENIORITY; LAYOFF; AND RE-EMPLOYMENT

SECTION 9.01. SENIORITY DEFINED. Seniority is measured from the date of hire to a full-time or part-time permanent position and is defined as an employee's length of continuous service in a classification with the City. Seniority shall apply only to layoff or re-employment.

SECTION 9.02. PROBATION. All original appointments shall be for a probationary period of twelve (12) months. All promotional appointments shall be for a probationary period of six (6) months with the option to extend up to six (6) months by department head. During the probationary period the employee may be rejected at any time without right of appeal or hearing before the Personnel Board. The Association may represent probationary employees for the purposes of meeting and conferring in respect to wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment which directly affect wages and hours. The Association shall not, however, represent probationary employees with respect to demotion, discipline, and/or discharge matters.

SECTION 9.03. JUST CAUSE. The City will not discipline, suspend, or terminate an employee, with the exception of temporary and probationary employees, except for just cause. Disciplinary action taken against any employee must comply with the

conditions set forth in Article XX of the City of Merced Personnel Rules and Regulations.

SECTION 9.04. LAYOFF AND RE-EMPLOYMENT.

- A. In lieu of being laid off, an employee may elect demotion ("bumping") to:
 - 1. Any class in the same class series with a lower maximum salary;
 - A class in the same line of work (as determined by the City) as the class of layoff, but of lesser responsibility, and with substantially the same or a lower maximum salary.
- B. In order to bump to a new classification, the employee must have more seniority than the employee that will be displaced.
- C. The employee bumping to a new classification must have held that classification at some time in his/her career in the City of Merced.
- D. Seniority is determined by the total continuous service in the City. The following provisions apply in computing total continuous service:
 - 1. Time spent on military leave shall count as service in the event the leave was taken subsequent to employment;
 - 2. Time worked in regular and/or probationary status shall count as service;
 - 3. Time worked in an extra help, seasonal, provisional, temporary, grant or other limited term status, shall not count as service.
- E. To be considered for demotion in lieu of layoff, an employee must notify the Director of Support Services (Personnel Manager) within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the notice of layoff.
- F. In cases where there are two or more employees in a class from which the layoff is to be made, such employees shall be laid off in inverse order of seniority.
- G. Employees bumping to a lower or similar class shall be placed at the salary step representing the least loss of pay, without exceeding the employee's current rate of pay.
- H. The names of persons laid off or demoted in accordance with this policy shall be entered upon a re-employment list in the order of lay off. Such list shall be used by the City Manager and each department head when a vacancy arises in the same or lower class.

- I. Names of persons laid off shall be carried on a re-employment list for two (2) years, except that persons appointed to regular positions of the same or higher level shall be dropped from the list upon such appointment. Persons re-employed in a lower class, or on a temporary basis, shall be continued on the list for the higher position for the two (2) years.
- J. Refusal of a person to accept the first offer of re-employment with the same classification or a classification at the same or higher range shall cause the name of the person to be dropped from the re-employment list. Failure of a person to respond within seven (7) work days to the offer of re-employment shall be considered a refusal.
- K. If the provisions of this policy are in conflict with the provisions of a Memorandum of Understanding, the MOU shall be controlling without further action.
- L. An employee may not demote to a frozen position or a position that is being eliminated as part of the layoff, and an employee electing demotion must meet the minimum qualifications for the new classification.

SECTION 9.05. LOSS OF SENIORITY. Employees and persons laid off from employment shall lose their seniority for any one of the following reasons: dismissal, resignation, failure to return to work if called from layoff, failure to return to work at the expiration of a formal leave of absence, retirement, or layoff for a continuous period of one (1) year or longer.

SECTION 9.06. SENIORITY LIST. The Director of Support Services (Personnel Manager) shall prepare a list of persons in each classification in the unit with his/her date of hire.

SECTION 9.07. TRAINING PROGRAMS. The Association recognizes the City's authority to provide training to participants in a federal, state, or locally-sponsored job training program so long as the participants will not displace any current unit employee or any laid-off unit employee and the training will not cause a reduction in non-overtime work.

ARTICLE X WAGES

SECTION 10.01. PAY PLAN. Wages are listed in Attachment A which is hereby incorporated in and made a part of this Memorandum of Understanding. Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year in 2018, pay period 14, wage increase of 2.50%. Effective the first pay period of the fiscal year in 2019 wage increase of 2.50%

SECTION 10.02. SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY. City agrees to pay a shift differential of one dollar (\$1.00) per hour for all employees required to work swing or graveyard shifts.

Shift differential pay shall only be earned if the employee starts and ends their shift during the shift differential period (5:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m.). In those cases where an employee starts or ends in a period other than the shift differential period and the employee worked at least fifty percent (50%) of their regular hours during the shift differential period, they shall earn shift differential pay for only those hours actually worked in the shift differential period.

Employees earning overtime pay from a regular shift which overlaps into the shift differential period do not earn additional shift differential pay during that period.

Shift differential pay will apply to all regular hour pay types, including workers compensation, CTO, sick leave, and vacation leave used.

SECTION 10.03 BILINGUAL PAY. In accordance with administrative policies and procedures, employees in the unit required to speak or write in Spanish, or other eligible languages in addition to English, and including sign language, as part of the regular duties of his/her position shall be compensated at the following monthly rates in addition to the employee's rate of pay:

Verbal Skills Only \$50.00 Written Skills Only \$75.00 Verbal and Written Skills \$100.00

The City Manager shall designate which languages shall be eligible for bilingual pay based on community needs and will determine the number of employees who will be eligible for bilingual assignments.

SECTION 10.04. APPLICABLE PAY FOR WORKING IN A HIGHER CLASSIFICATION. On occasion, an employee may be required to work in a higher classification. In such cases, the salary of the employee will be adjusted to compensate for the higher level of duties.

An employee who is assigned to and performs the duties of a higher classification as set forth in this section shall be entitled to receive the first step in the pay range for the assigned position. If the salary at such step is less than or equal to the employee's present salary, such employee may receive the salary at the next step in the pay range of the acting position which is immediately above his/her present salary.

In order to receive adjusted compensation for working in a higher classification, the employee must: (1) be certified by the Personnel Manager as to possessing the qualifications and requirements to perform the duties of the higher classification, (2) be able to perform all the duties and responsibilities of the position.

The City Manager or his designee must approve in writing an employee working in a higher classification.

ARTICLE XI DRIVER'S LICENSE/PLANT OPERATOR CERTIFICATION/ PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

SECTION 11.01. GENERAL. In those instances where the City requires, as a condition of employment, an employee to have a particular driver's license or a special certificate, the Association agrees that it is the responsibility of the employee to pay all costs in obtaining the first license and/or certificate at each level.

SECTION 11.02. CLASS A AND CLASS B DRIVER'S LICENSE. In those instances where the City requires, as a condition of continuing employment, an employee to renew or maintain a driver's license for which the law requires a medical examination, City agrees to make such medical examination available to the employee without cost to the employee. The City agrees to pay for special certificates and endorsements that are required by the City.

SECTION 11.03. PLANT OPERATOR CERTIFICATION. In those instances where the City requires, as a condition of employment in the appointed class, an employee to renew State certification as a Water Treatment Operator, Water Distribution Operator, Collections System Maintenance Worker or a Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, as required by the State of California. The City agrees to pay the amount of the fee for renewal of the certification if renewal is submitted no later than one month prior to due date. City agrees to reimburse employees for amount of fee for renewals submitted after deadline.

SECTION 11.04. PHYSICAL EXAMINATION. In those instances where the City requires, as a condition of continuing employment, an employee to successfully pass a medical examination, the City agrees to provide such examination without cost to the employee. The physician shall be selected by the City.

The employee may choose to obtain an additional medical examination from his/her personally selected physician or from any source other than that provided by the City. The cost of such medical examination shall be borne by the employee.

If the results of such medical examinations are in conflict, the City shall provide a medical examination without cost to the employee. The City shall select a physician of its choice, other than the prior selected physician or a physician in that same medical group practice, and shall act on the results of the medical examinations most in agreement.

SECTION 11.05. CONTINUING EDUCATION UNITS AND CONTACT HOUR CLASSES. City shall provide for or pay for continuing education units and contact hour classes required for maintenance of licenses and certificates necessary to the job as specified in the job description or as required by State and Federal law, with class time and location subject to approval of City.

SECTION 11.06. PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATION MEMBERSHIP DUES. City shall provide pay for individual professional organization membership dues in an amount up to \$250.00 per membership per year in the areas of the Parks and Streets Divisions for organizations which are directly related to job duties and which provide only individual memberships in which the City cannot obtain an organizational membership.

ARTICLE XII RETIREMENT

SECTION 12.01. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS). The City shall maintain the 2.5% at age 55 California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Retirement Program for current Association members. The City will implement a two-tiered retirement system, and all new Association members hired on or after December 10, 2012 will be covered by the 2% at age 60 benefit formula, if they are eligible for reciprocity as defined by CalPERS. "New Members", as defined by CalPERS, shall be covered by the 2% at age 62 benefit formula.

Participation in the PERS Retirement Program requires both an employer and employee contribution. Association members shall pay the entire employee contribution required by PERS. The employees' payment of 1.95% of the employer contribution shall be eliminated effective December 22, 2014.

Employee cost sharing will be made by payroll deduction and will be considered pretax.

ARTICLE XIII GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

SECTION 13.01. DEFINITIONS. The following words used in this Article are defined as follows:

Grievance: A claimed violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of a specific provision of this Memorandum of Understanding which adversely affects the grievant.

Grievant: An employee or the Association who is filing a grievance. An alleged violation, misapplication or misinterpretation that affects more than one employee in a similar manner may be consolidated and thereafter represented by a single grievance.

Day: A day in which the City's main administrative office is open for business.

SECTION 13.02. TIME LIMIT FOR FILING GRIEVANCE. A grievance shall be barred and not considered if based upon a condition or event which occurred or

existed more than fifteen (15) workdays immediately prior to the date on which the grievance is first presented.

SECTION 13.03. PROCEDURE. The City and the Association agree to the following exclusive procedure of presenting and adjusting grievances that must be processed in accordance with the following steps, time limits and conditions.

SECTION 13.04. STEP ONE. The aggrieved employee shall discuss the matter with the employee's immediate supervisor.

SECTION 13.05. STEP TWO. If the answer from the immediate supervisor is not satisfactory within ten (10) workdays following this discussion, the grievance within such time shall be reduced to writing on the form provided by the Personnel Department and submitted to the grievant's immediate supervisor. Within ten (10) workdays after receipt of the written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall answer the grievance in writing.

SECTION 13.06. STEP THREE. The answer from the immediate supervisor shall be final unless the grievance is appealed in writing to the involved department head within ten (10) workdays from the date of the supervisor's written answer in Step One. Within ten (10) workdays after receipt of the written appeal, the department head shall investigate and provide a written answer to the grievant.

SECTION 13.07. STEP FOUR. The answer from the department head shall be final unless the grievance is appealed in writing to the Director of Support Services or his/her designee within ten (10) workdays from the date of the department head's written answer in Step Two. The Director of Support Services or designee shall discuss the grievance with the grievant or the Association representative at a time mutually agreeable to both parties. Within ten (10) workdays after the close of discussion, the Director of Support Services or designee shall give his/her written answer.

SECTION 13.08. STEP FIVE. The answer from the Director of Support Services or designee shall be final unless the grievance is appealed in writing to the Personnel Board Chairperson within five (5) workdays after receipt of the Director of Support Services' or designee's written answer in Step Four. The Personnel Board shall hold a hearing of the grievance within thirty (30) workdays after receipt of the written appeal. The Personnel Board, after conducting such hearing, shall forward its recommendation to the City Manager for final determination. The City Manager, after consideration of the Personnel Board's recommendation, shall provide his/her written final determination to the aggrieved employee within ten (10) workdays.

SECTION 13.09. EFFECT OF TIME LIMITS. The parties agree to follow each of the foregoing steps in the processing of a grievance and if, in any step, the City's representative fails to give his/her written answer within the time limit therein set forth, the grievance shall automatically be transferred to the next step at the expiration of such time limit. Any grievance not moved by the grievant or the

Association to the next step within the time limits provided following the City's answer will be considered settled on the basis of the City's last answer.

SECTION 13.10. EXTENSION OF TIME LIMITS. Extensions of days to answer or move a grievance may be extended by mutual written agreement.

SECTION 13.11. REPRESENTATION. Nothing contained in this Article shall be interpreted to preclude an employee from requesting a representative to be present at each step in the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XIV MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

SECTION 14.01. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS. All City rights and functions, except those that are expressly abridged by this Memorandum of Understanding, shall remain vested with the City.

Except to the extent that the rights, powers and authority of the City are specifically limited by the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding, the City retains all rights, powers and authority granted to it or which it has pursuant to any law or the City Charter and the City shall not be required to meet and confer with respect to the exercise of such rights, powers and authority reserved hereinincluding, but not limited to:

- a. Determine the level of, and manner in which, the City's activities and services are conducted, managed, and administered.
- b. Schedule work.
- c. Direct employees, including the right to hire, promote, discipline, or discharge employees as set forth in the Personnel Rules.
- d. Transfer employees.
- e. Establish and enforce employee performance standards.
- f. Determine the safety, health, and property protection measures for the City. Reorganizations and reallocation of work of the City.

This agreement is not intended, nor may it be construed, to modify the provisions of the Charter relating to Civil Service or personnel administration. The rights, powers, and authorities are specifically outlined in the Merced City Charter in Article V, City Manager and Article VI, Officers and Employees and shall continue in effect unless expressly modified or restricted by a specific provision hereof. The City shall continue to exercise authority over classification of jobs and the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotion.

ARTICLE XV NO STRIKE

SECTION 15.01. NO STRIKE. Association agrees that during the term of this Memorandum of Understanding, neither it nor its officers, employees, or members

will engage in, encourage, sanction, support, or suggest any strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slow downs, mass absenteeism, picketing, sympathy strikes, sickouts or any other similar actions which would involve suspension of or interference with the normal work of the City. Any employee who violates this provision may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

In the event that any concerted action as described above occurs, Association will notify the members that such activity is in violation of this Memorandum of Understanding and Association will notify the members that such concerted action shall cease and the members shall return to work.

Association shall take whatever legal actions are necessary to see that its members return to work. Failure to do so may result in sanctions taken by the City against the Association.

ARTICLE XVI SCOPE OF UNDERSTANDING

SECTION 16.01. SCOPE OF UNDERSTANDING. For the term of this agreement, this Memorandum of Understanding fully and completely incorporates the understanding of the parties hereto and constitutes the sole and entire understanding between the parties regarding the provisions contained in this MOU; provided, however, that nothing shall prohibit the parties from changing the terms of this Memorandum by mutual agreement.

ARTICLE XVII SEPARABILITY

SECTION 17.01. SEPARABILITY. In the event that any provision of this Memorandum of Understanding is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, such nullification shall not affect any other provisions of this Memorandum, all of which provisions shall remain in full force and effect and the parties agree to meet and confer in an attempt to agree upon a replacement of such provision.

ARTICLE XVIII TERM OF AGREEMENT

SECTION 18.01. TERM OF AGREEMENT. Unless otherwise provided in this Memorandum of Understanding, upon the approval of the City Council of the City of Merced, the specific provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding shall become effective January 1, 2018, and shall remain in ful force and effect through December 31, 2019.

ARTICLE XIX PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS

SECTION 19.01. PERSONNEL RULES AND REGULATIONS. The City and the Association have met and conferred on the March 1989 Personnel Rules and Regulations and exceptions to those Rules and Regulations are contained in this Memorandum of Understanding, as well as the deletion of Paragraph "Y" of Section 20.02.

SECTION 19.02. RECRUITMENT. All job openings covered by this Memorandum of Understanding shall be posted in all departments and open for bid to qualified individuals, with the City being the sole judge of qualifications.

ARTICLE XX AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)

SECTION 20.01. REASONABLE ACCOMODATIONS. The City and the Association recognize that the City has an obligation under law to provide employment-related reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities within the meaning of and in accordance with its obligations under the California Fair Employment and Housing Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act. If by reason of the aforesaid requirement, the City contemplates actions to provide reasonable accommodation to an individual employee which are in potential conflict with any provisions of this Labor Memorandum, the Association will be advised of any such proposed accommodation prior to implementation by the City, and will be allowed the opportunity to discuss options to disregarding the memorandum.

City and Association agree that the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding may be disregarded in order for the City to avoid discrimination relative to hiring, promotion, granting permanency, transfer, layoff, reassignment, termination, rehire, rates of pay, job and duty classification, seniority, leaves, fringe benefits, training opportunities, hours of work, or other terms and privileges of employment. Any accommodation provided to an individual protected by the ADA shall not establish a past practice, nor shall it be cited or used as evidence of a past practice in the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XXI SMOKING AND TOBACCO PRODUCT USE

SECTION 21.01. TOBACCO PRODUCT USE. The City of Merced declares a hiring policy which disqualifies habitual users of tobacco products from eligibility for employment. Employees hired for positions in the bargaining unit after January 1, 2006 (except reinstatements and re-hires after layoff after the effective date of this agreement) shall not be permitted to use any tobacco products, consistent with this policy. Failure to follow this policy will lead to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal.

Employees hired into the bargaining unit prior to December 31, 2005 will be permitted to use tobacco products in a manner consistent with any restrictions established by State law and this agreement.

Under no circumstances shall any tobacco product be used at any time inside a City building or vehicleor on City owned property.

DATED: 7-5-/8 DATED: FOR THE ASSOCIATION: FOR THE CITY: Steve Carrigan Debbie Macias AFSCME City Manager David Weaver Stephanie Dietz MACE President Assistant City Manager morter F-50 AJ Destasio Dengen Proctor **Director of Support Services** Corey Plagenza Shelline K. Bennett City Negotiator Cosmo Ordunez Armando Garibay

Matthew Beckman

Attachment A MACE WAGE SUMMARY Effective PP14 - 6/18/18

S GRAI 0 128 5 177 7 132 8 152 6 156 7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 9 178 192 0 182 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	DE 1 3,087 3,921 3,326 3,668 3,677 3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292 4,953	3,241 4,117 3,493 3,851 3,861 4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	3 3,403 4,322 3,667 4,044 4,054 4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464 5,398	4 3,573 4,538 3,851 4,246 4,257 4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752 5,737	5 3,752 4,765 4,043 4,459 4,470 4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990 6,024
5 177 7 132 8 152 6 156 7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,921 3,326 3,668 3,677 3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,117 3,493 3,851 3,861 4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,322 3,667 4,044 4,054 4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,538 3,851 4,246 4,257 4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,765 4,043 4,459 4,470 4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
7 132 8 152 6 156 7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,326 3,668 3,677 3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	3,493 3,851 3,861 4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	3,667 4,044 4,054 4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	3,851 4,246 4,257 4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,043 4,459 4,470 4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
8 152 6 156 7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,668 3,677 3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	3,851 3,861 4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,044 4,054 4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,246 4,257 4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,459 4,470 4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
6 156 7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 172	3,677 3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	3,861 4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,054 4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,257 4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,470 4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
7 176 0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,901 4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,096 4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,301 4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,516 4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,741 4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
0 170 1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,058 4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,260 4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,473 4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,697 5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,932 5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,526 2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,753 2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,990 3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	5,240 3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	5,502 3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
1 192 0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	2,800 3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526	2,940 3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	3,087 3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	3,241 3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	3,403 3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
0 104 1 128 5 171 6 201 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,087 3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526	3,241 4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	3,403 4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	3,573 4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	3,752 4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
5 171 6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,994 4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,193 4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,403 5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	4,623 5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	4,854 5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
6 201 5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,623 3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,854 3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	5,097 3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	5,351 3,886 4,752 4,752	5,619 4,081 4,990 4,990
5 127 5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	3,357 4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	3,525 4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	3,701 4,526 4,526 5,464	3,886 4,752 4,752	4,081 4,990 4,990
5 178 9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,105 4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,311 4,311 5,204 5,141	4,526 4,526 5,464	4,752 4,752	4,990 4,990
9 178 0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,105 4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	4,311 5,204 5,141	4,526 5,464	4,752	4,990
0 182 5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,956 4,896 4,526 4,292	5,204 5,141	5,464		
5 204 8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,896 4,526 4,292	5,141		5,737	6.024
8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,526 4,292		5,398	,	0,024
8 192 5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142	4,292		-,	5,668	5,951
5 172 7 185 0 157 5 142		4,753	4,990	5,240	5,502
0 157 5 142	A OF 3	4,506	4,732	4,968	5,217
5 142	4,903	5,200	5,460	5,733	6,020
5 142	4,258	4,471	4,694	4,929	5,176
	3,395	3,565	3,743	3,930	4,127
0 174	4,368	4,586	4,815	5,056	5,309
0 120	3,236	3,398	3,568	3,746	3,934
1 140	3,567	3,745	3,933	4,129	4,336
2 159	4,077	4,281	4,495	4,720	4,956
0 141	3,589	3,768	3,957	4,154	4,362
1 169	3,957	4,154	4,362	4,580	4,809
2 175	4,506	4,731	4,967	5,216	5,477
0 112	3,048	3,200	3,360	3,528	3,705
1 133	3,362	3,530	3,706	3,891	4,086
0 153	3,784	3,974	4,172	4,381	4,600
5 150	3,479	3,653	3,835	4,027	4,229
6 151	4,027	4,228	4,440	4,662	4,895
8 193	4,570	4,799	5,039	5,291	5,555
0 179	4,785	5,024	5,276	5,539	5,816
5 136	3,335	3,501	3,676	3,860	4,053
5 340	3,916	4,111	4,317	4,533	4,760
	3,344	3,512	3,687	3,872	4,065
	3,871	4,064	4,268	4,481	4,705
9 134	3,287	3,451	3,624	3,805	3,995
0 154	3,632	3,814	4,004	4,205	4,415
0 161	4,542	4,769	5,007	5,258	5,520
0 148	4,162	4,370	4,589	4,818	5,059
3 340	3,916	4,111	4,317	4,533	4,760
	4,105	4,311	4,526	4,752	4,990
5 129	3,208	3,369	3,537	3,714	3,900
0 155	3,723	3,909	4,105	4,310	4,525
1 178	4,105	4,311	4,526	4,752	4,990
2 192	4,526	4,753	4,990	5,240	5,502
	4,765	5,003	5,254	5,516	5,792
0 160	4,323	4,539	4,766	5,004	5,254
	4,765		5,254	5,516	5,792
	4,742	4,979	5,228	5,489	5,764
0 190	4,980		5,490	5,765	6,053
2 202	5,229		5,764	6,053	6,355
7 130	3,513	3,689	3,873	4,067	4,270
	3,087	3,241	3,403	3,573	3,752
	5 340 1 122 0 146 9 134 0 154 0 161 0 148 3 340 0 178 5 129 0 155 1 178 2 192 0 162 0 160 1 162 9 180 0 190 2 202 7 130 0 128	5 340 3,916 1 122 3,344 0 146 3,871 9 134 3,287 0 154 3,632 0 161 4,542 0 148 4,162 3 340 3,916 0 178 4,105 5 129 3,208 0 155 3,723 1 178 4,105 2 192 4,526 0 162 4,765 0 160 4,323 1 162 4,765 9 180 4,742 0 190 4,980 2 202 5,229 7 130 3,513 128 3,087	5 340 3,916 4,111 1 122 3,344 3,512 0 146 3,871 4,064 9 134 3,287 3,451 0 154 3,632 3,814 0 161 4,542 4,769 0 148 4,162 4,370 3 340 3,916 4,111 0 178 4,105 4,311 5 129 3,208 3,369 0 155 3,723 3,909 1 178 4,105 4,311 2 192 4,526 4,753 0 162 4,765 5,003 0 160 4,323 4,539 1 162 4,765 5,003 9 180 4,742 4,979 0 190 4,980 5,229 2 202 5,229 5,490 7 130 3,513 3,689 128 3,087 3,241	5 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 1 122 3,344 3,512 3,687 0 146 3,871 4,064 4,268 9 134 3,287 3,451 3,624 0 154 3,632 3,814 4,004 0 161 4,542 4,769 5,007 0 148 4,162 4,370 4,589 3 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 0 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 5 129 3,208 3,369 3,537 0 155 3,723 3,909 4,105 1 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 2 192 4,526 4,753 4,990 0 162 4,765 5,003 5,254 0 160 4,323 4,539 4,766 1 162 4,765 5,003 5,254 </td <td>5 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 4,533 1 122 3,344 3,512 3,687 3,872 0 146 3,871 4,064 4,268 4,481 9 134 3,287 3,451 3,624 3,805 0 154 3,632 3,814 4,004 4,205 0 161 4,542 4,769 5,007 5,258 0 148 4,162 4,370 4,589 4,818 3 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 4,533 0 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 4,752 5 129 3,208 3,369 3,537 3,714 0 155 3,723 3,909 4,105 4,310 1 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 4,752 2 192 4,526 4,753 4,990 5,240 0 162 4,765 <</td>	5 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 4,533 1 122 3,344 3,512 3,687 3,872 0 146 3,871 4,064 4,268 4,481 9 134 3,287 3,451 3,624 3,805 0 154 3,632 3,814 4,004 4,205 0 161 4,542 4,769 5,007 5,258 0 148 4,162 4,370 4,589 4,818 3 340 3,916 4,111 4,317 4,533 0 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 4,752 5 129 3,208 3,369 3,537 3,714 0 155 3,723 3,909 4,105 4,310 1 178 4,105 4,311 4,526 4,752 2 192 4,526 4,753 4,990 5,240 0 162 4,765 <

Page 33 of 39

80 AS

Attachment A MACE WAGE SUMMARY Effective PP14 - 6/17/19

		- Annanananananananananananananananananan			Steps		
IOB TITLE	CLASS	GRADE	1	2	3	4	5
AIRPORT MAINTENANCE WORKER	01070	128	3,164	3,322	3,488	3,663	3,846
AIRPORT OPERATIONS TECHNICIAN	01075	177	4,019	4,219	4,430	4,652	4,885
BUILDING MAINTENANCE WORKER I	01617	132	3,410	3,580	3,759	3,947	4,144
BUILDING MAINTENANCE WORKER II	01618	152	3,760	3,948	4,145	4,352	4,570
COLLECTION SYSTEM WORKER II	156	3,769	3,957	4,155	4,363	4,581	
COLLECTION SYSTEM WORKER III	01966 01967	176	3,998	4,198	4,408	4,628	4,860
CONTAINER MAINTENANCE WORKER	02100	170	4,159	4,367	4,585	4,815	5,055
CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL SPECIALIST	02011	192	4,639	4,871	5,115	5,371	5,639
CUSTODIAN I	02200	104	2,870	3,013	3,164	3,322	3,488
CUSTODIAN II	02201	128	3,164	3,322	3,488	3,663	3,846
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL OFFCR I	04365	171	4,093	4,298	4,513	4,739	4,976
ENVIRONMENTAL CONTROL OFFCR II	04366	201	4,738	4,975	5,224	5,485	5,759
QUIPMENT SERVICE WORKER	04375	127	3,441	3,613	3,794	3,983	4,183
ABRICATION TECH/STOREKEEPER	04485	178	4,208	4,418	4,639	4,871	5,115
FINANCE LIASION	04499	178	4,208	4,418	4,639	4,871	5,115
LEET MAINTENANCE LEAD WORKER	04660	182	5,080	5,334	5,601	5,881	6,175
NSTRUMENT ELECTRIC TECHNICIAN	07225	204	5,018	-		5,809	6,100
	05378		-	5,269	5,533		
AND APPLICATION PROGRAM LEAD	-	192	4,639	4,871	5,115	5,371	5,639
.EAD - MAIN SEWERS/STORM DRAIN	05375	172	4,399	4,619	4,850	5,092	5,347
LEAD - PW WATER	05387	185	5,076	5,330	5,597	5,876	6,170
LEAD REFUSE EQUIPMENT OPERATOR	05390	157	4,364	4,583	4,812	5,052	5,305
LEAD ZOO KEEPER	05395	142	3,480	3,654	3,837	4,029	4,230
MAINTENANCE ELECTRICIAN	05480	174	4,477	4,701	4,936	5,182	5,442
MAINTENANCE WORKER I	05520	120	3,317	3,483	3,657	3,840	4,032
MAINTENANCE WORKER II	05521	140	3,656	3,839	4,031	4,233	4,444
MAINTENANCE WORKER III	05522	159	4,179	4,388	4,608	4,838	5,080
MECHANIC I	05640	141	3,678	3,862	4,056	4,258	4,471
MECHANIC II	05641	169	4,056	4,258	4,471	4,695	4,929
MECHANIC III	05642	175	4,618	4,849	5,092	5,346	5,613
PARK WORKER I	06120	112	3,124	3,280	3,444	3,617	3,797
PARK WORKER II	06121	133	3,446	3,618	3,799	3,989	4,188
PARK WORKER III 06:		153	3,879	4,073	4,277	4,490	4,715
PESTICIDE APPLICATOR I	06275	150	3,566	3,744	3,931	4,128	4,334
PESTICIDE APPLICATOR II	06276	151	4,128	4,334	4,551	4,778	5,017
PUBLIC UTILITIES INSPECTOR	06548	193	4,685	4,919	5,165	5,423	5,694
PUMP OPERATOR	06550	179	4,905	5,150	5,407	5,678	5,962
PW - SEWER COLL SYST WORKER	01965	136	3,418	3,589	3,768	3,957	4,154
RECYCLING COORDINATOR	06665	340	4,014	4,214	4,425	4,646	4,879
REFUSE EQUIPMENT OPERATOR	06691	122	3,428	3,599	3,779	3,968	4,167
REFUSE EQUIPMENT OPR TRAINEE	06690	146	3,968	4,166	4,374	4,593	4,823
STREET SWEEPER OPERATOR	06979	134	3,369	3,537	3,714	3,900	4,095
STREET SWEEPER OPER TRAINEE	06980	154	3,723	3,909	4,104	4,310	4,525
FRAFFIC SIGNAL/LIGHTING TECHNICIAN	07020	161	4,655	4,888	5,132	5,389	5,658
FREE TRIMMER	07140	148	4,266	4,479	4,703	4,939	5,186
WATER CONSERVATION SPECIALIST	02203	340	4,014	4,214	4,425	4,646	4,879
WATER METER/BACKFLOW TECHNICIAN	07300	178	4,208	4,418	4,639	4,871	5,115
WATER SYS IRRIGATION MAINT WKR	07300	129			3,626	3,807	3,997
WATER SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN I	07330	155	3,289	3,45:3		4,418	4,639
WATER SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN I	07330	178	3,816	4,007	4,207	4,871	5,115
	07331		4,208	4,418	4,639		
WATER SYSTEMS TECHNICIAN III		192	4,639	4,871	5,115	5,371	5,639
WWTP MAINT ELECT/MECHANIC	07240	162	4,884	5,129	5,385	5,654	5,937
WWTP MECHANIC I	07230	160	4,431	4,652	4,885	5,129	5,385
WWTP MECHANIC II	07231	162	4,884	5,129	5,385	5,654	5,937
WWTP OPERATOR I	07249	180	4,860	5,103	5,358	5,626	5,908
WWTP OPERATOR II	07250	190	5,104	5,359	5,627	5,909	6,204
WWTP OPERATOR III	07252	202	5,359	5,627	5,909	6,204	6,514
WWTP OPERATOR TRAINEE	07247	130	3,601	3,781	3,970	4,168	4,377
ZOO KEEPER	07700	1128	3,164	3,322	3,488	3,663	3,846

St. DD.

Op C.D.

MI St.

AS

Qty	Class	Description	Dimension
1	Storage	An appropriate size and securable tool box	
1	Standard 1/4	Ratchet	1/4
1	Standard 1/4	Extension	1/4 x 2
1	Standard 1/4	Extension	1/4 x 6
1	Standard 1/4	Socket set shallow	1/4 x 3/16-9/16
1	Standard 1/4	Socket set deep	1/4 x 3/16-9/16
1	Metric 1/4	Socket set shallow	1/4 x 4mm-15mm
1	Metric 1/4	Socket set deep	1/4 x 4mm-15mm
1	Standard 1/4	Socket set universal	1/4 x 3/16-9/16
1	Standard 3/8	Socket set shallow	3/8 x 1/4 x 7/8
1	Standard 3/8	Socket set deep	3/8 x 1/4 x 7/8
1	Standard 3/8	Socket spark plug	3/8 x 13/16
1	Standard 3/8	Socket spark plug	3/8 x 5/8
1	Metric 3/8	Socket set shallow	3/8 x 8mm-19mm
1	Metric 3/8	Socket set deep	3/8 x 8mm-19mm
1	Standard 3/8	Socket set universal	3/8 x 7/16-3/4
1	Standard 3/8	Ratchet	3/8
1	Standard 3/8	Extension	3/8 x 1 1/2
1	Standard 3/8	Extension	3/8 x 6
1	Standard 3/8	Extension	3/8 x 11
1	Standard 3/8	Joint universal	3/8
1	Standard 3/8	Socket torx	3/8 x E8-E16
1	Standard 3/8	Socket allen wrench	3/8 x 1/8-3/8
1	Metric 3/8	Socket allen driver	3/8 x 4mm-14- mm

20



1	Standard 3/8	Socket torx driver	3/8 x T27-T55
1	Standard 3/8	Socket set impact shallow	3/8 x 3/8-3/4
1	Standard 3/8	Socket set impact deep	3/8 x 3/8-3/4
1	Metric 3/8	Socket set impact shallow	3/8 x 8mm-24mm
1	Metric 3/8	Docket set impact deep	3/8 x 8mm-24mm
1	Standard 3/8	Joint impact universal	3/8
1	Standard 3/8	Adaptor	3/8 x 1/2
1	Standard 1/2	Adaptor	1/2 x 3/8
1	Standard	Adaptor	1/2 x 3/4
1	Standard 3/4	Adaptor	3/4 x 1/2
1	Standard	Breaker Bar	1/2
1	Standard	Extension	1/2 x 2
1	Standard	Extension	1/2 x 5
1	Standard	Extension	1/2 x 11
1	Standard	Joint universal	1/2
1	Standard	Socket set shallow	1/2 x 7/16 -1 1/4
1	Standard	Socket set deep	1/2 x 7/16 -1 1/4
1	Metric 1/2	Socket set shallow	1/2 x 12mm- 27mm
1	Metric 1/2	Socket set deep	1/2 x 12mm- 27mm
1	Standard	Socket set impact shallow	1/2 x 7/16-1 1/4
1	Standard	Socket set impact deep	1/2 x 7/16-1 1/4
1	Metric 1/2	Socket set impact shallow	1/2 x 12mm- 27mm
1	Metric 1/2	Socket set impact deep	1/2 x 12mm- 27mm
1	Standard	Wrench combination set	1/4 - 1 1/2
1	Metric	Wrench combination set	7mm - 27mm

20

	Standard	Wrench flair nut	1/4 - 3/4
	Metric	Wrench flair nut	9mm - 18mm
	Standard	Wrench allen	1/8 - 1/2
	Metric	Wrench allen	6mm - 12mm
	Standard	Wrench adjustable	10 in
	Standard	Wrench adjustable	6 in
	Standard	Wrench pipe	2 in capacity
	Standard	Screwdriver flat	1/8 x 6
	Standard	Screwdriver flat	3/16 x 6
	Standard	Screwdriver flat	3/16 x 10
	Standard	Screwdriver flat	1/4 x 10
	Standard	Screwdriver flat	1/4 x 12
	Standard	Screwdriver phillips	#0
	Standard	Screwdriver phillips	#1
	Standard	Screwdriver phillips	#2
	Standard	Screwdriver phillips	#3
	Standard	Screwdriver phillips	#4
	Standard	Screwdriver pozidrive	#1
_	Standard	Screwdriver pozidrive	#2
	Standard	Screwdriver pozidrive	#3
	Standard	Screwdriver torx set	T6 - T30
	Standard	Driver nut	1/4 - 1/2
	Metric	Driver nut	6mm -12 mm
	Standard	Pliers slip joint 2 position	8 in
	Standard	Pliers slip joint 5 position	12 in
	Standard	Pliers needle nose	6 in
	Standard	Cutters diagonal	6 in
	Standard	Pliers locking	7 in
	Standard	Pliers retaining ring	small
	Standard	Pliers retaining ring	medium
_	Standard	Pliers retaining ring	large
_	Standard Standard	Pliers wire stripper	
	Standard	Pliers wire crimper	small
_	Standard	Pry bar Pry bar	
	Standard	Torque wrench	large 1/2 in
	Standard	Hammer ball peen	24 oz A
	Standard	Hammer ball peen	48 oz
	Standard	Hammer bronze	24 oz
	Standard	Punch pin set	small
	Standard	Punch pin set	
	Standard	Punch pin set	large O
	- Contract of	- 3 p 300	medium large
		Page 37 of 39	MR
		1 490 01 01 00	

1	Standard	Punch center set	small
1	Standard	Punch center set	large
1	Standard	Chisel flat set	small
1	Standard	Chisel flat set	large
1	Standard	Gasket scraper	
1	Standard	Utility knife	
1	Standard	Magnetic pick up tool	Telescoping
1	Standard	Tape measure	12 ft
1	Standard	Gauge feeler set	.002035
1	Metric	Gauge feeler set	.05mm - 1mm
1	Standard	Spark plug gap tool	
1	Standard	Caliper vernier type	0 - 6 in
1	Standard	Volt ohm meter digital	
1	Standard	Circuit tester	12 volt
1	Standard	Spring coupling disconnect set	
1	Standard	Oil filter wrench	
1	Standard	Wrench ignition set	
1	Standard	Seal puller	
1	Standard	Tire pressure gauge	
1	Standard	Wrench brake bleeder	1/4
1	Standard	Wrench brake bleeder	1/3
1	Standard	Wrench brake bleeder	3/8
1	Standard	Hack saw	

SO DE SO

SIDE LETTER TO THE JANUARY 1, 2018 MOU BETWEEN THE CITY OF MERCED AND MACE

This is a Side Letter to the January 1, 2018 Memorandum Of Understanding ("MOU") between the City and MACE.

This side letter is only effective for the term of the January 1, 2018 MOU and shall sunset on December 31, 2019 and have no force or effect following this date.

During the term of the January 1, 2018 MOU and contingent upon the City possibly having a final, completed compensation study being conducted by an outside vendor, upon written notice to the other party, either the City or Association may reopen negotiations for the sole purpose of discussing base wage increases only.

reopen negotiations for the sole purpose	e of discussing base wage increases only.
DATED: <u>5-30-18</u>	DATED: 7/5/18
Debbie Macias AFSCME David Weaver MACE President	Steve Carrigan City Manager Stephanie Dietz Assistant City Manager
AJ Destasio	Deneen Proctor Director of Support Services
Corey Plagenza Cosmo Ordunez	Shelline K. Bennett City Negotiator
Armando Garibay Jay King	

Matthew Beckman